
  
BELLBROOK CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
September 13, 2021 
 
7:00 pm-Regular Meeting 

1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance  

3. Roll Call 

4. Approval of the minutes of the August 4 and 9 meetings 

5. Mayor’s Announcements and Special Guest 

• Constitution Week Proclamation 
• Kleingers Group Streetscape Plan Update 

6. Public Hearing of Ordinances - none 

7. Introduction of Ordinances 

• Ordinance 2021-8 An Ordinance Amending Ordinance 2021-4 By Making 
Supplemental Appropriations To Adjust The City of Bellbrook Appropriations for 
2021  (Van Veldhuizen) 

8. Resolutions  

• Resolution 2021-BB A Resolution Accepting the Amounts and Rates as 
Determined by the Budget Commission and Authorizing the Necessary Tax Levies 
and Certifying Them to the County Auditor (Havens) 

9. Old Business 

10. New Business 

• Ohio Division of Liquor Control Notice-A notice of an Application for Change of 
Corporate Stock Ownership for Dot’s Bellbrook Market Inc. 

11. City Manager Report 

12. Committee Reports  

A. Service 
B. Safety 
C. Finance/Audit  
D. Community Affairs – Recommendation for appointments to BZA/PRC and VRB 

13. Clerk’s Update 

14. Open Discussion 

15. Public Comment 

16. Adjournment 

City of Bellbrook 
15 E. Franklin Street 
Bellbrook, Ohio  45305 

T (937) 848-4666 
F (937) 848-5190 

www.cityofbellbrook.org 



 

Future Agenda Items (dates are subject to change) 

• October 11 – 6pm Budget Work Session– Administration & Service Departments  
• October 25 - 6pm Budget Work Session– Police & Fire Departments 
• November 8 – 6pm Budget Work Session– Capital Improvement Plan  
• November 22 – Introduction of 2022 Budget Ordinance 
• December 13 - Public Hearing of 2022 Budget Ordinance  

 



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Work Session and Regular Meeting 

August 4, 2021 
 

   1  

PRESENT: Ernie Havens 
Dr. Van Veldhuizen 
Forrest Greenwood  

  Mayor Mike Schweller 
   
ABSENT:  Mr. Hoke and Elaine Middlestetter 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

Mayor Schweller called the regular meeting to order at 7:00 pm.   

 

ROLL CALL 

Mr. Havens, yes; Dr. Van Veldhuizen; Mr. Greenwood, yes; Mayor Schweller, yes. 

Dr. Van Veldhuizen made a motion to excuse Mr. Hoke and Mrs. Middlestetter from the meeting. Mr. 

Havens seconded the motion.  The Clerk called the roll.  Dr. Van Veldhuizen, yes; Mr. Havens, yes; Mr. 

Greenwood, yes; Mayor Schweller, yes.  The motion passed 4-0. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Mayor Schweller asked if anyone had any comments or corrections to the minutes of July 19, 21, and 24 

Special Meetings. Hearing none he declared the minutes approved.   

 
MAYOR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS  

Mayor Schweller thanked Council for adjusting their schedules to accommodate this special meeting.   

 

The Mayor announced that the meeting was called to appoint a new City Manager.  This will be 

Bellbrook’s fourth City Manager.  He thanked applicants who applied for the position and the Council 

Clerk for the time and effort participating in the process to find a new City Manager.  He explained that 

Council met several times in the past few weeks and exhibited a great spirit of cooperation and 

professionalism.  The deliberations were both methodical and comprehensive with the goal of doing 

what is best for the citizens of Bellbrook.  He thanked the Council Members present and Mrs. 

Middlestetter and Mr. Hoke.   



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Work Session and Regular Meeting 

August 4, 2021 
 

   2  

Mayor Schweller explained that as a result of the process they found Rob Schommer to be the most 

qualified candidate and tonight’s purpose is to move forward with his appointment.  Mr. Schommer 

impressed Council with his knowledge of city management.  He has the experience to step in and begin 

addressing the City’s needs.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING OF ORDINANCES  - none 

INTRODUCTION OF ORDINANCES  - none 

 

RESOLUTIONS  

Mr. Greenwood read Resolution 2021-Z A Resolution to Appoint Robert Schommer as the City 

Manager, Approving His Service as the Director of Finance and Director of Safety, and to Approve and 

Enter Into an Employment Agreement.  

Mayor Schweller stated that as the interview process progressed Mr. Schommer stood out for his 

knowledge of the City and experience in city management.  Council was pleased with the work Mr. 

Schommer had done prior to this.  The rest of Council concurred with this. 

Mr. Greenwood made a motion to adopt Resolution 2021-Z A Resolution to Appoint Robert Schommer 

as the City Manager, Approving His Service as the Director of Finance and Director of Safety, and to 

Approve and Enter Into an Employment Agreement.  Mr. Havens seconded the motion.  The Clerk called 

the roll.  Mr. Greenwood, yes; Mr. Havens, yes; Dr. Van Veldhuizen, yes; Mayor Schweller, yes.  The 

motion passed 4-0. 

OATH OF OFFICE 

Mayor Schweller administered the oath of office to Mr. Schommer.  After which Mr. Schommer took his 

place on the dais. 

 

OLD BUSINESS - none 

NEW BUSINESS - none 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Work Session and Regular Meeting 

August 4, 2021 
 

   3  

Service – none  

Safety – none 

Finance – none 

Community Affairs – none 

CLERK’S REPORT  

Future Agenda Items (dates are subject to change) 

• August 9 - Beautification Awards 

• October 11 – 6pm Budget Work Session– Administration & Service Departments 

• October 25 - 6pm Budget Work Session– Police & Fire Departments 

• November 8 – 6pm Budget Work Session– Capital Improvement Plan 

• November 22 – Introduction of 2022 Budget Ordinance 

• December 13 - Public Hearing of 2022 Budget Ordinance 

 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 

Robert Schommer introduced himself.   He recounted entering public service work 30 years ago.  He 

began his career in law enforcement spending the last 25 years in Huber Heights.  He stated that he 

is loyal to the idea and concepts of public service.   He added when he retired from that position, he 

was unsure if he would look for employment in public service.  He explained that when the 

opportunity with Bellbrook arose, he was very interested knowing about the City.  As he studied 

more about the City and looked at the work products, he recognized the commitment to the 

community.  He shared that he feels privileged to have the opportunity to serve.  He pledged to the 

elected officials, staff, and the community that he will serve the will and vision of this Council and 

put that into action for the benefit of the residents and businesses.  He welcomes hearing from 

residents stating that the ideals of openness, honesty, and transparency are paramount to a 

successful local government.   

 



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Work Session and Regular Meeting 

August 4, 2021 
 

   4  

COMMENTS 

Mr. Greenwood stated that his thoughts during the process were for the citizens. He added his hopes to 

carry forward some of the things Melissa Dodd started.  He opined that as we move forward the City will 

have challenges but the new City Manager is someone dedicated and experienced who can hit the 

ground running.  Mr. Schommer stood out from the other candidates and vetted well.  Mr. Greenwood 

thanked all of the candidates for applying and interviewing.  

Mr. Havens thanked the other City Manager candidates.  He explained that the way that executive 

sessions work by law is that no decisions can be made within the session.  The decision was voted on 

tonight.  He stated that Council needed to move quickly, and Mr. Schommer made that easy.  Mr. Havens 

said he was aware that the community has concerns but they should rest assured that Council spent 

hours researching and checking references.  He added that the deeper he dug, the more Mr. Schommer 

shined. 

Dr. Van Veldhuizen also spoke to the citizen comments explaining that all of the issues mentioned were 

reviewed.  Mr. Schommer spoke strategically, tactically, and operationally concerning upcoming 

challenges. 

Mayor Schweller  echoed the sentiments of the other Council Members. 

  

PUBLIC COMMENT  

David Buccalo, 126 Lower Hillside Drive, said he was glad to have a new City Manager.  He asked the 

Mayor about allowing comments from the public before Council voted on the Resolution as he thinks 

Council rushed this process.  Mayor Schweller explained that Resolutions do not allow for public 

discussion.  Mr. Buccalo stated that had not had time to thoroughly review the employment contract 

but believes there are items that the public question.  Council has already voted on and approved the 

contract so Mr. Buccalo wanted to know what good public input is at this point.   

Meredith Brinegar, 2221 Ivy Crest Drive, asked for clarification concerning Mr. Schommer’s resignation 

without 30 days’ notice from Huber Heights, the $150,000 lump sum consulting agreement, and if this 

could cause a conflict.  She explained that she read the pertinent Huber Heights codes and the 



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Work Session and Regular Meeting 

August 4, 2021 
 

   5  

agreements.  In those documents there is a stipulation that resigning would forfeit the right to severance.  

So how is the $150,000 not a severance package.  Mrs. Brinegar stated that this lump sum agreement 

which was more than his annual salary leads her to believe he did not leave Huber Heights to “personal 

opportunities.” She asked how Council answers these questions.   

Mrs. Brinegar stated that the media and public records indicate that Mr. Schommer is involved in open 

lawsuits against him and the Huber Heights Council.  These items lead her and others to have a lack of 

trust in Council’s actions.  She also asked if staff were included in the process or anyone from the public.  

Mr. Schommer answered that he can provide any answers that he is allowed to give including that the 

accompanying resolution eliminated the 30-day notice and added details about the severance. He stated 

that was his previous employment and now he is focused on this community.  The terms of his separation 

have no bearing on this employment.  Mayor Schweller added that Council followed the standard 

process .  Staff was introduced to Mr. Schommer on Tuesday.  It is Council’s responsibility to make this 

decision.  Mr. Greenwood added that the City Charter outlines the process.  The Council reviewed many 

candidates. 

Dr. Van Veldhuizen reminded the Mayor and Council that he will be out of town on business and will not 

be able to attend the next Council Meeting. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

The Mayor announced that there was no further business and adjourned the meeting at 7:35 PM. 

  

______________________________________ 
Michael W. Schweller, Mayor 
 

____________________________________ 
Pamela Timmons, Clerk of Council  





RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Regular Meeting 

August 9, 2021 
 

   1  

PRESENT: TJ Hoke 
  Ernie Havens 

Forrest Greenwood  
Elaine Middlestetter, Acting Mayor 

     
ABSENT: Dr. Van Veldhuizen, Mayor Schweller 

ALSO PRESENT:   City Manager Rob Schommer 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

Acting Mayor Middlestetter called the regular meeting to order at 7:00 pm.   

 

ROLL CALL 

Mr. Hoke, yes; Mr. Havens, yes; Mr. Greenwood, yes; Mrs. Middlestetter, yes. 

Mr. Hoke made a motion to excuse Dr. Van Veldhuizen and Mayor Schweller from the meeting.  The 

motion was seconded by Mr. Havens.  All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Acting Mayor Middlestetter asked if anyone had any comments or corrections to the minutes of July 26. 

Hearing none she declared the minutes approved.   

 
MAYOR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS  

Acting Mayor Middlestetter introduced Rob and Michele Johnson who are the co-chairs of the Bellbrook 

Beautification Committee. 

Mr. Johnson began by thanking the Committee members:  Becki Wick, Sophia Briley, Linda Edwards, 

Bonnie Howe, and Betty Ogrod. 

He explained that the city is divided into five sections.  Two winners are chosen from each section.  There 

is also one business winner.  The winners receive a rock inscribed with “Bellbrook Beautification Award 

2021”.  This year’s winners are: 

Area A:  4236 Clearview Ct – Mike & Julie Baumer 

   4495 Knob Hill – Zachary & Taylor Skerl 



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Regular Meeting 

August 9, 2021 
 

   2  

Area B:  2216 Marcia Dr – Pat Berger 

    2182 Regent Park Dr – John & Shelley Penewit 

Area C:  4112 Amy Brooke Circle – Bob & Diane Putman 

   4058 Possum Run Rd – Richard & Rhonda Barhorst 

Area D:  3312 Streamview Ct – Brenda Root 

   170 Belair Ct – Jordan Keish 

Area E:  3813 Callaway Ct – Mike & Wendy Dyer 

   3836 Sable Ridge Dr – Bob & Ginny Beeson 

Business Winner:  4454 Bellemeade Dr - Daniel Devol Custom Builders 

 
Acting Mayor Middlestetter thanked the Committee and all of the winning property owners for their 

work.  The other Council Members echoed the sentiment. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING OF ORDINANCES  - none 

INTRODUCTION OF ORDINANCES  - none 

RESOLUTIONS  

Mr. Havens read RESOLUTION 2021-AA An Emergency Resolution by Bellbrook City Council to Accept 

the Material Terms of The OneOhio Subdivision Settlement Pursuant to The OneOhio Memorandum 

of Understanding and Consistent with the Terms of the July 21, 2021, National Opioid Settlement 

Agreement. 

Mr. Schommer explained that the OneOhio settlement will bring in $804 million dollars to the state.  The 

more cities that join the suit the better the settlement will be.  This legislation is time sensitive and if 

approved, must be returned to the Municipal Attorney by the 13th.  

Mr. Greenwood asked if there were specific guidelines for using the funds.  Mr. Schommer answered 

that it would most likely be for intervention, treatment, and recovery services.  The City can involve 

training, awareness, enhanced EMS and community organizations. 

Mr. Hoke asked if we know what neighboring municipalities are participating.  Mr. Schommer said that 

we do not know the exact number at this time. 



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Regular Meeting 

August 9, 2021 
 

   3  

Mr. Havens made a motion to adopt RESOLUTION 2021-AA An Emergency Resolution by Bellbrook City 

Council to Accept the Material Terms of The OneOhio Subdivision Settlement Pursuant to The 

OneOhio Memorandum of Understanding and Consistent with the Terms of the July 21, 2021, National 

Opioid Settlement Agreement.  Mr. Hoke seconded the motion.  The Clerk called the roll.  Mr. Havens, 

yes; Mr. Hoke, yes; Mr. Greenwood, yes; Acting Mayor Middlestetter, yes.  The motion passed 4-0. 

 

OLD BUSINESS – none 
 
NEW BUSINESS – none 
 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 

Mr. Schommer reported the following: 

• The internal information needed for the Budget planning is being compiled. 

• The Greene County information used to certify the millage for the tax levy has been received. 

• The study is being prepared by the Kleingers Group for the Streetscape plan.  Their suggestions 

should be ready for review by Council by the end of September. 

Mr. Hoke asked where the funds for the plan will come from.  Mr. Schommer explained that this would 

be paid out of the General Fund.  The Greene County grant is specifically a match for money paid by the 

City for this project.  He said he would have more information on the schedule of payment at the next 

meeting. 

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Service – Mr. Greenwood reported that the Service Department has been completing the annual 

painting projects around the City.  He also wanted to remind citizens that school starts on August 

18.  

Safety – Mr. Hoke reminded Council that they could take a tour of the Greene Central Dispatch unit on 

Wednesday, August 18 at 12:30 PM.  Greene County is seeing a modest increase in COVID-19 cases.  

At this point there has been no changes to the daily operations for the Police or Fire Departments.  



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Regular Meeting 

August 9, 2021 
 

   4  

The Police Department has placed a purchase order for new radios.  The allocation for a new cruiser 

has been put on hold due to the vehicle shortages around the country. 

Finance – none 

Community Affairs – Mrs. Middlestetter stated that the Committee will try to meet soon to interview 

the candidates for the openings on the Village Review Board and BZA-PRC. There is also an opening 

to be the community representative to the Records Commission. Details are available on the 

website.  

 

CLERK’S REPORT  

• October 11 – 6pm Budget Work Session– Administration & Service Departments 

• October 25 - 6pm Budget Work Session– Police & Fire Departments 

• November 8 – 6pm Budget Work Session– Capital Improvement Plan 

• November 22 – Introduction of 2022 Budget Ordinance 

• December 13 - Public Hearing of 2022 Budget Ordinance 

 

COMMENTS 

Mr. Greenwood - none 

Mr. Havens added that he had a chance to tour the office of Devol Builders and it is just as beautiful 

inside as it is outside.  They are very deserving of the Beautification Award. 

Mr. Hoke announced that any homebound residents may request a COVID-19 vaccination by calling the 

Fire Department at 937-848-3272. 

Mrs. Middlestetter - none 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT - none 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

The Acting Mayor announced that there was no further business and adjourned the meeting at 7:30 PM. 

 



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Regular Meeting 

August 9, 2021 
 

   5  

 ______________________________________ 
Elaine Middlestetter, Acting Mayor 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Pamela Timmons, Clerk of Council  





 
Office of the Mayor 

Bellbrook, Ohio 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 

Constitution Week 
September 17-23, 2021 

 
Whereas, The Constitution of the United States of America, the guardian of our liberties, 

embodies the principles of limited government in a Republic dedicated to rule by law; and 
 

Whereas, September 17, 2021, marks the two hundred and thirty-fourth anniversary of the 
framing of the Constitution of the United States of America by the Constitutional Convention; and 
 

Whereas, It is fitting and proper to accord official recognition to this magnificent document and 
its memorable anniversary, and to the patriotic celebrations which will commemorate it; and 
 

Whereas, Public Law 915 guarantees the issuing of a proclamation each year by the President 
of the United States of America designating September 17 through 23 as Constitution Week, 
 

THEREFORE, I, Michael W. Schweller, Mayor of the City of Bellbrook, on behalf of City 
Council, do hereby proclaim the week of September 17 through 23, 2021, as Constitution Week and ask 
our citizens to reaffirm the ideals the Framers of the Constitution had in 1787 by vigilantly protecting 
the freedoms guaranteed to us through this guardian of our liberties. 
 
 
      

In witness whereof I have hereunto set my hand and affixed this seal. 
 
 
     _______________________________________ 
     Michael W. Schweller, Mayor 
 
 
     ATTEST: ______________________________ 
          Pamela Timmons, Clerk of Council  

 
DATE: ________________________________ 





RECORD OF ORDINANCES 
 

Ordinance No. 2021-8 September 27, 2021 
 

1 

City of Bellbrook 

Ordinance No. 2021-8 

An Ordinance Amending Ordinance 2021-4 by Making Supplemental Appropriations 
to Adjust The City of Bellbrook Appropriations for 2021. 

WHEREAS, the City of Bellbrook adopted the 2021 annual budget based on the best information 
available at the time; and 

WHEREAS, additional costs and/or adjustments will occur in various 2021 Personnel Services and 
Other Expenses which requires the amendment of various appropriation levels. 

Now, Therefore, the City of Bellbrook Hereby Ordains: 

Section 1. That the 2021 appropriation levels in several of the funds listed below be amended 
as follows: 

Fund 2021 
Appropriations 

Personnel  
Services 
Revisions 

Other  
Expenses 
Revisions 

Total  
Revisions 

Amended 
2021 
Appropriations 

General Fund: 
     

-Legislative $83,648  $  -    $  -    $  -     $83,648  
-Administrative $899,996  $  -    $58,919  $58,919  $958,915  
-Library $2,000  $  -    $   -    $  -    $2,000  
-Museum $ 19,728  $  -    $7,500  $7,500  $27,228  
-Community 

 
$60,529  $  -    $  -    $  -    $60,529  

Total General Fund $1,065,901  $ -    $66,419  $66,419  $1,132,320  
    
Police Fund $1,858,190  $  -    $25,039  $25,039  $1,883,229  
Police Pension Fund $60,590  $ -    $ -    $ -    $60,590  
Fire Fund $1,506,121  $  - $  - $  - $1,506,121  
Street Fund $477,514  $- $18,400  $18,400  $495,914  
State Highway Fund $19,750  $  - $  - $  - $19,750  
Motor Vehicle Fund $31,850  $  - $  - $  - $31,850  
Coronavirus Relief Fund $  -    $  -    $1,888  $1,888 $1,888  
Local Fiscal Recovery Fund $  -    $96,162  $288,484  $384,646  $384,646  
Fuel System Fund $1,200  $  -    $  - $  - $1,200  
Waste Fund $483,500  $  - $  - $  - $483,500 
Water Fund $1,590,918  $  - $  - $  - $1,590,918  
Capital Improvement Fund $335,500  $  - $56,789  $56,789  $392,289  
Performance Bond Fund $15,000  $  - $  - $  - $15,000  
 
Grand Total - All Funds $7,446,034  $96,162  $457,019  $553,181  $7,999,215  

 
Section 2. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning 

and relating to the adoption of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, and that any 
and all deliberations of this Council that resulted in such formal action were in meetings open to the public, 
in compliance with all legal requirements, including, but not limited to Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised 
Code. 



RECORD OF ORDINANCES 
 

Ordinance No. 2021-8 September 27, 2021 
 

2 

Section 3. This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period 
provided by law. 

 
PASSED this ____day of ___________________________________, 2021 
 

  
Michael W. Schweller, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

  
Pamela Timmons, Clerk of Council 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Stephen M. McHugh, Municipal Attorney 
 



F
ro

m
: 
1

/1
/2

0
2

1
 t
o

 8
/3

1
/2

0
2

1

C
it

y
 o

f 
B

e
ll

b
ro

o
k

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

a
s

h
 P

o
s

it
io

n

In
cl

u
d

e
 I
n

a
ct

iv
e

 A
cc

o
u

n
ts

: 
Y

e
s

F
u

n
d

s:
 1

0
0

 t
o

 8
1

0

In
cr

e
a

se
s,

O
th

e
r 

Y
T

D
N

e
t 
E

xp
e

n
se

s
Y

T
D

E
n

cu
m

b
ra

n
ce

Y
T

D
E

n
d

in
g

B
a

la
n

ce
U

n
e

xp
e

n
d

e
d

B
a

la
n

ce
D

e
cr

e
a

se
s,

O
th

e
r 

Y
T

D
F

u
n

d
N

e
t 
R

e
ve

n
u

e
Y

T
D

B
e

g
in

n
in

g
B

a
la

n
ce

D
e

sc
ri
p

tio
n

1
0

0
G

e
n

e
ra

l F
u

n
d

$
1

,9
0

5
,7

0
3

.9
7

$
9

2
1

,6
6

4
.1

2
$

9
3

,1
8

5
.6

8
$

1
7

,9
0

6
,8

9
3

.4
0

$
1

8
,6

5
0

,1
3

1
.0

7
$

1
,9

9
0

,9
4

4
.7

4
$

1
4

7
,4

9
0

.1
8

$
1

,8
4

3
,4

5
4

.5
6

2
0

0
L

o
ca

l C
o

ro
n

a
vi

ru
s 

R
e

lie
f 

F
u

n
$

6
1

,1
6

8
.0

1
$

5
0

0
.0

0
$

0
.0

0
$

0
.0

0
$

5
6

,8
2

7
.8

5
$

4
,8

4
0

.1
6

$
5

5
0

.0
0

$
4

,2
9

0
.1

6

2
0

1
L

o
ca

l F
is

ca
l R

e
co

ve
ry

 F
u

n
d

$
0

.0
0

$
3

8
4

,6
4

5
.8

9
$

0
.0

0
$

0
.0

0
$

0
.0

0
$

3
8

4
,6

4
5

.8
9

$
0

.0
0

$
3

8
4

,6
4

5
.8

9

2
1

0
S

tr
e

e
t 

F
u

n
d

$
2

3
9

,0
4

2
.4

8
$

2
5

9
,3

0
5

.8
3

$
1

3
6

,6
3

8
.0

1
$

5
0

5
.4

2
$

1
7

3
,6

2
2

.3
8

$
1

8
8

,5
9

3
.3

4
$

5
4

,8
4

8
.3

2
$

1
3

3
,7

4
5

.0
2

2
2

0
S

ta
te

 H
ig

h
w

a
y 

F
u

n
d

$
6

8
,0

9
9

.2
6

$
2

0
,5

5
7

.0
1

$
1

,3
5

2
.5

3
$

0
.0

0
$

7
,3

6
5

.8
0

$
7

9
,9

3
7

.9
4

$
6

,0
6

5
.6

8
$

7
3

,8
7

2
.2

6

2
3

0
P

o
lic

e
 F

u
n

d
$

4
3

3
,6

0
9

.3
2

$
1

,3
7

7
,7

6
3

.8
6

$
3

5
6

,3
7

4
.6

2
$

1
5

0
,9

4
3

.5
6

$
6

2
7

,7
7

0
.5

8
$

9
7

8
,1

7
1

.5
4

$
2

5
5

,8
3

9
.4

3
$

7
2

2
,3

3
2

.1
1

2
4

0
F

u
e

l S
ys

te
m

 F
u

n
d

$
7

,0
0

2
.8

3
$

7
4

4
.8

9
$

0
.0

0
$

1
8

3
.2

2
$

5
5

0
.0

0
$

7
,3

8
0

.9
4

$
0

.0
0

$
7

,3
8

0
.9

4

2
5

0
F

ir
e

 F
u

n
d

$
4

6
0

,9
3

3
.4

7
$

1
,1

8
2

,7
6

0
.7

6
$

2
6

5
,5

9
4

.9
5

$
5

0
,9

1
7

.2
1

$
5

1
7

,1
8

2
.5

8
$

9
1

1
,8

3
3

.9
1

$
1

3
4

,9
6

9
.7

7
$

7
7

6
,8

6
4

.1
4

2
6

0
L

a
w

 E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
T

ru
st

 F
u

n
d

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

2
7

0
P

o
lic

e
 P

e
n

si
o

n
 F

u
n

d
$

2
0

,7
4

9
.3

7
$

5
4

,9
0

5
.3

5
$

8
,5

0
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
1

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
5

2
,1

5
4

.7
2

$
2

1
,5

0
0

.0
0

$
3

0
,6

5
4

.7
2

2
8

0
M

o
to

r 
V

e
h

ic
le

 L
ic

e
n

se
 F

u
n

d
$

2
6

8
,8

2
4

.5
6

$
3

4
,9

0
8

.3
2

($
5

,3
6

1
.9

2
)

$
0

.0
0

$
3

2
,4

1
0

.2
0

$
2

7
6

,6
8

4
.6

0
$

2
,6

6
6

.9
2

$
2

7
4

,0
1

7
.6

8

2
9

0
L

a
w

 E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
E

d
u

ca
tio

n
 

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

3
0

0
C

a
p

ita
l I

m
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
t 

F
u

n
d

$
6

5
8

,8
2

0
.9

7
$

0
.0

0
$

1
6

6
,6

5
8

.8
2

$
3

5
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

2
6

,6
1

8
.2

0
$

8
1

5
,5

4
3

.9
5

$
1

2
8

,7
3

2
.1

9
$

6
8

6
,8

1
1

.7
6

6
1

0
W

a
st

e
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 F

u
n

d
$

1
3

6
,7

1
8

.4
7

$
3

5
3

,2
7

6
.8

1
$

1
1

9
,4

5
3

.7
5

$
2

0
.4

8
$

1
9

8
,5

9
3

.6
9

$
1

7
1

,9
6

8
.3

2
$

4
3

,8
4

0
.3

2
$

1
2

8
,1

2
8

.0
0

6
2

0
W

a
te

r 
F

u
n

d
$

3
,3

1
5

,4
7

6
.0

8
$

1
,1

5
6

,0
6

1
.0

2
$

3
1

8
,8

2
3

.3
7

$
1

,1
2

9
.3

7
$

5
1

5
,4

0
4

.3
8

$
3

,6
3

8
,4

3
8

.7
2

$
2

4
8

,9
0

1
.9

7
$

3
,3

8
9

,5
3

6
.7

5

6
3

0
W

a
te

r 
B

o
n

d
 F

u
n

d
$

0
.0

0
$

0
.0

0
$

0
.0

0
$

0
.0

0
$

0
.0

0
$

0
.0

0
$

0
.0

0
$

0
.0

0

8
0

0
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 B

o
n

d
 F

u
n

d
$

1
9

,8
1

4
.6

5
$

1
,1

6
4

.9
5

$
1

,9
5

0
.0

0
$

0
.0

0
$

0
.0

0
$

1
9

,0
2

9
.6

0
$

1
,6

2
5

.0
0

$
1

7
,4

0
4

.6
0

8
1

0
A

g
e

n
cy

 F
u

n
d

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
7

,5
9

5
,9

6
3

.4
4

$
5

,7
4

8
,2

5
8

.8
1

$
1

,4
6

3
,1

6
9

.8
1

$
1

8
,4

6
0

,5
9

2
.6

6
$

2
0

,8
2

1
,4

7
6

.7
3

$
9

,5
2

0
,1

6
8

.3
7

$
1

,0
4

7
,0

2
9

.7
8

$
8

,4
7

3
,1

3
8

.5
9

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l:

P
a

g
e

 1
 o

f 
1

V
.3

.5
9

/3
/2

0
2

1
 2

:5
8

 P
M





 
AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION REPORT 

 
Meeting Type:  City Council Meeting    Meeting Date:  9/13/2021 

Department:   Finance  Submitted By:  Rob Schommer 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Ordinance 

Amending The Appropriations for 2021 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Cost:  $553,181 Source of Funds:  Other - Various 

Funds Currently Budgeted:  No 

Notes/Implications:  Supplemental Appropriation considers $429,435 of additional/covered revenue  

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND: 

This Ordinance will amend (supplement) the appropriations for the 2021 fiscal year.  There are a 
variety of purposes and needs for the supplemental appropriation that will be detailed below: 

General Fund: 

The General Fund is the only non-restrictive source of monies available for expending which covers a 
number of projects and operations as well as subsidizing the other funds.   

The Administrative Department within the Fund has been used to budget and schedule the Downtown 
Streetscape Study, legal and prosecution fees, and covering a finance software conversion project.  
$58,919 is needed to initiate and/or finalize those projects: 

• $35,000 For Kleingers Group – Downtown Streetscape Study – 75% covered in grant revenue 
• $10,000 for additional legal fees for 2021 
• $3,781 for additional prosecution fees (increase in contract) 
• $10,138 for extended I/T and finance software conversion fees 

The Museum Department is likely to receive a grant for $5000 for repair/replacement of steps.  In 
addition, some exterior building repairs and maintenance is needed for the funeral museum building.  
$7,500 will be  

• $5,000 for new steps – 100% covered by grant 
• $2,500 for building repairs 

Police Fund: 

The police department has received a donation from the estate of Edna Keiter and a cash donation.  
That money will be appropriated into the fund for use by the police per the donor’s wishes.  In 
addition, the police department has experienced additional I/T expenses YTD. 

• $13,539 Donation into the Police Fund 



• $11,500 for additional I/T related expenses 

Street Fund: 

The engineering costs for the 725 Bridge project potentially starting next year need to be included into 
the expenses for the City’s contracted engineering firm.  In addition to the crosswalk/intersection 
review and design for downtown, and a variety of other engineering reviews, and additional $18,400 
is needed to schedule and continue those projects.  It is estimated funds received for the 725 bridge 
project will reimburse engineering costs for that particular project. 

• $18,400 For engineering fees for various projects 

Capital Improvement Fund: 

As noted in the original 2021 budget presentation, the CIP budget would be addressed later in the 
year.  An original appropriation was done; however, some additional capital costs have been added 
with additional projects and purchases.  $56,789 is needed to balance the current anticipated capital 
improvement project and purchase costs. 

• $16,067 For purchase, installation and programming of video equipment and peripherals for 
broadcasting to cable TV 

• $40,722 for actual costs of budgeted capital improvement items 

Coronavirus Relief Fund: 

There are funds remaining that will be used to finalize the project and close out the fund 

• $1,888 in remaining funds for use in Covid materials and supplies and reimbursement 

Local Fiscal Recovery Fund: 

This Fund was created to receive the allotment of the American Rescue Plan Act monies filtered 
down from the federal government.  These funds differ from restrictions on use from the CARES Act, 
and are also intended to be used over a period of time.  These funds are restricted, and cannot be 
used for general operations; however, they are designed to allow for services and projects to further 
the recovery of the community from any negative economic impact of the pandemic.  A structured 
plan will be discussed and implemented to begin use of these available funds with primary focus on 
aiding the community in housing, small business recovery and infrastructure.  Since the funds have 
been received, the City wishes to be transparent in making sure to publicly appropriate the funds as 
programs are developed to benefit the community. 

• $96,162 for personnel services use 
• $288,484 for other expenses use 

General breakdown of this and previous supplemental appropriations considering the 2021 Budget: 

Original Budget Previous Supplemental Amended Budget 
Revenue $7,088,817 Revenue $7,328,317 Revenue $7,757,752 
Expenses $6,840,084 Expenses $7,446,034 Expenses $7,999,215 
Difference $248,733 Difference $131,016 Difference $-110,447 

 



RECORD OF RESOLUTIONS 
 

Resolution No. 2021-BB September 13, 2021 
 

1 

City of Bellbrook 

Resolution No. 2021-BB 

A Resolution Accepting the Amounts and Rates as Determined by the Budget 
Commission and Authorizing the Necessary Tax Levies and Certifying Them to the 
County Auditor. 

WHEREAS, this Council, in accordance with the provisions of law, has previously adopted a Tax 
Budget for the next succeeding fiscal year commencing January 1, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, the Budget Commission of Greene County, Ohio, has certified its action thereon to 
this Council together with an estimate by the County Auditor of the rate of each tax necessary to be levied 
by this Council, and what part thereof is without, and what part within the ten mill tax limitation. 

Now, Therefore, the City of Bellbrook Hereby Resolves: 

Section 1. That the amounts and rates, as determined by the Budget Commission in its 
certification, be and the same are hereby accepted. 

Section 2. That there be and is hereby levied on the tax duplicate of said City the rate of each 
tax necessary to be levied within and without the ten mill limitation as attached hereto. 

Section 3. That the Clerk of this Council be, and she is hereby directed to certify a copy of 
this Resolution to the County Auditor of said County. 

Section 4. That it is found and determined that all formal actions of the City Council relating 
to the adoption of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in such formal action, were in 
meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements, including §121.22 of the Revised 
Code of the State of Ohio. 

Section 5. That this resolution shall take effect and be in force forthwith. 

PASSED this ____day of ___________________________________, 2021. 
 
 
 
  
Michael W. Schweller, Mayor 

 

  
Pamela Timmons, Clerk of Council 





















 
AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION REPORT 

 
Meeting Type:  City Council Meeting    Meeting Date:  9/13/2021 

Department:   Finance  Submitted By:  Rob Schommer 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Resolution 

Accepting Tax Levy Amounts and Rates  

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Cost:  N/A Source of Funds:  Choose an item.  

Funds Currently Budgeted:  Choose an item. 

Notes/Implications:  Establishes rates for Tx Budget for the 2022 Budget Year 

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND: 

Greene County Auditor requires the City to pass a Resolution accepting the rates and an Official 
Certificate of Estimated Resources by October 1. 

As additional information through the Auditor’s Office becomes available, there may be adjustments 
to revenue figures. 

Subsequent to establishing the 2022 budget, the City will amend and file the Certificate of Estimated 
Resources and file it with the County Auditor. 

 

 

 









 
AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION REPORT 

 
Meeting Type:  City Council Meeting    Meeting Date:  9/13/2021 

Department:   Administration  Submitted By:  Rob Schommer 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

City Manager Report 

Various topics of discussion and presentation of information 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Cost:  N/A Source of Funds:  Choose an item.  

Funds Currently Budgeted:  Choose an item. 

Notes/Implications:  Click or tap here to enter text. 

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND: 

Kleinger’s Group will be offered time to provide an update on the Downtown Streetscape Study.  This 
update is not a reveal of the final study, as there is a final public input forum to be scheduled later in 
the month. 

This update is to have Council meet/introduce the project manager to give an overview of what has 
been done so far.  After that, we will schedule a public forum to have the firm gather input from the 
community.  The City will then take all the gathered input on the draft and get together in a Council 
Work Session to review and discuss the final direction and refine the proposed improvements based 
on the public feedback session and Council’s work session/input.  Upon conclusion of the draft report, 
we will include cost estimates, a phasing strategy and potential funding/grant opportunities.  

Below are some bullet points of what has been done so far in the project to be covered and described 
in the update: 

Pre-Design/Coordination/Meetings 

 Performed due diligence and streetscape site visit to review the existing streetscape, 
parking, lighting, planting, signage, streetscape furnishings, concrete, hardscape, 
crosswalks, amenities, pedestrian and trail connections, Bellbrook Park, and overall 
streetscape aesthetics. 

 Gained available GIS base-mapping to be utilized for the Downtown Streetscape 
design moving forward.  

 We also gained drone footage for the base map. This was incredibly helpful. 
 Reviewed the Bellbrook Comprehensive Plan to gain valuable insight on the downtown 

streetscape vision. 



 Attended kick off / pre-design meeting with the City to review scope of work, 
anticipated schedule, and discuss design thoughts and vision for the streetscape 
design vision. 

 Streetscape walk with the City to review the existing streetscape aesthetics, condition, 
and effectiveness. 

 Meetings with the City to discuss the vision for the streetscape and to gain design 
concurrence on the proposed improvements throughout the design process. 

 

Streetscape Master Plan 

 Provided an Existing Conditions Streetscape Plan documenting the existing 
streetscape aesthetics and conditions.  

 Provided a Conceptual Streetscape Master Plan depicting the overall vision for the 
Streetscape with opportunities and recommendations. This Streetscape Master Plan(s) 
includes locations for pedestrian connectivity, crosswalk enhancements for traffic 
calming, curb bump-outs where appropriate and will include pavement types, tree and 
landscaping enhancements, bicycle accommodations, opportunities for public art, and 
signage, etc. 

 Provide locations and aesthetics for site furnishings to include benches, trash 
receptacles, planters, bike racks and parking, and other streetscape amenities and 
furniture. 

 Provide a Concept Planting Plan depicting street trees and areas to be planted. 
 Provide a Planting List indicating the types of plantings that are proposed for the 

projects, including plant list with genus, species size and type of plant. 
 Provide locations for art installations, signage, and gateway features to provide an 

aesthetic destination to the streetscape. 
 Provide an 11 x 17 imagery sheet showing the vision of the proposed streetscape 

aesthetics including hardscape, landscaping, site furnishings, lighting, and wayfinding 
signage to gain design consensus between the City and design team. 

 
Fire Department Satisfaction Surveys 
 
The Fire Department conducts regular surveys, and a review of the responses will be provided 
 
Recognition of Community and Public Service 
 
Members of Staff including Michaela Grant, Jerry Burgan and Ryan Pasley provided exceptional 
service to a resident who provided a detailed thank you note.  Their example of service and 
leadership should stand as an example for all. 
 

 



>> On Aug 17, 2021, at 8:47 PM, So Go < wrote: 
>> Greetings, Mr. Schommer, 
>>  
>> The purpose of my email is to convey our sincere gratitude and appreciation for Michaela Grant, 
Jerry Burgan, and Ryan Pasley, and the exceptional team of people working for the City of Bellbrook 
for their help with opening up the drainage ditches on Nedra Drive and on S Linda Drive, near our 
home.   
>>  
>> First, let me share that I have been in customer service, sales, and technical support related 
positions for 30+ years, and Michaela, Jerry, and Ryan are some of the best front line personnel I’ve 
come across.  On the rare occasion when you can’t reach them in person, their response times are 
freaky fast, they are extremely personable, and they consistently convey a genuine concern, 
thoughtfulness, and sense of urgency with addressing the question or issue at hand.  
>>  
>> Next, onto the impetus for my email.  Earlier this year we began noticing water pooling up around 
our house during heavy rainfalls, which led us to have the drain lines in our yard and driveway jetted.  
However, the torrential storm that hit this area on 18 June, exposed to us that the drain tiles were just 
no match for the volume of water flowing across our property.  During that storm, our house was 
surrounded with water on three sides and almost flooded.  We literally watched all night as the water 
surged past the front and back doors, anticipating a breach at any moment. Thankfully the surge only 
partially flooded the garage, but not the house.  
>>  
>> Shortly after that, our neighbor, Vern Owens, noted that historically during heavy rains he had 
witnessed storm runoff flowing across Nedra Drive, through our neighbor’s driveway, into our yard, 
directly around our house, and eventually through his yard to the creek.  Vern suggested calling the 
City to assess the open ditches on Nedra and Linda, which we did immediately…and that is where 
your amazing team came into play! 
>>  
>> The response times, empathy, and expertise that Michaela, Jerry, and Ryan demonstrated were 
beyond impressive!  Michaela literally returned our first voicemail within minutes and knew exactly 
who could help.  From there Jerry showed up at our house later that same morning to listen, begin 
assessing the situation, and share a few recommendations.  Within about a week, Jerry and Ryan 
had evaluated and identified a solution for catching and rerouting rain water on Nedra and Linda. 
Then within another month they and their team had literally implemented that solution (i.e., widening 
ditches, clearing clogged drain lines, removing bushes, and installing new drain lines where needed).  
In light of their handy work and diligence, we are now obviously thrilled and deeply relieved knowing 
that a sizable portion of any heavy rainfalls, which had been flowing directly to our house from Nedra, 
should now be re-routed through the open ditch drain lines.    
>>  
>> Lastly, please forgive the lengthy email.  It is just that my wife and I have been absolutely blown 
away by the level of service, commitment, and care that we have received from the City of Bellbrook.  
We feel incredibly fortunate that we found a home here last fall and we cannot say enough about the 
awesome experience we’ve had with the world class team of people that the City has assembled! 
>>  
>> Thank you! 
>>  
>> Very respectfully,  
>> Soren 
>>  
>> Soren Gormley 
 


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

